
Upon request, auxiliary aids and/or special services will be provided.  To request services, please contact us 
at 541-296-9445 or through Oregon Relay 1-800-735-2900 at least three business days in advance. 

 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
December 19, 2022 

5:30 p.m. 
Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue Station 

1400 West 8th Street, The Dalles, Oregon 
 
1. Call Meeting to Order  

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call  

 
4. Agenda Changes 
 
5. Minutes  

 
a. Correction of Minutes, if any – Monday, November 21, 2022.  

 
6. Public Comment 
 

a. During this portion of the meeting, a citizen may speak on any subject upon being 
recognized by the Board President. The citizen must state their name, address, and their 
discussion topic for the minutes. Five minutes per person will be allowed. If a response 
by the District is requested, the speaker will be referred to the Fire Chief for further 
action. At the discretion of the Board President, the issue may appear on a future 
meeting agenda for Fire District consideration.  
 

b. The public may observe and/or listen to the meeting virtually by using either the link or 
the telephone number and access code provided below: 
 
TELEPHONE NO.: +1 (631) 992-3221 
 
AUDIO ACCESS CODE: 817-661-209 
 
COMPUTER LINK: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/8188005245695198805 
 
WEBINAR ID: 952-352-523 

 
7. Financial Reports 
  

a. Balance Sheets/Combined Cash Accounts as of 11/30/2022  
b. Ambulance Service Financial Report 12/01/21 to 11/30/22 

 
8. Committee Reports 

 
a. Urban Renewal Report - Director Bailey 
b. Enterprise Zone Report – Director Jacobs 

 
9. Fire Chief’s Report 
 

a. Fire Chiefs Report 
b. Monthly Report – AC Jensen 
c. Monthly Report – DC Wood 

 

1

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/8188005245695198805


Upon request, auxiliary aids and/or special services will be provided.  To request services, please contact us 
at 541-296-9445 or through Oregon Relay 1-800-735-2900 at least three business days in advance. 

 
 

d. Monthly Report - DC Coleman 
e. Other items as needed 

 
10. Correspondence 
 
11. Old Business 

 
12. New Business  

 
a. Resolution No. 2022-09 “A Resolution Adopting a Supplemental Budget for FY 2022-23, 

Making Appropriations, and Authorizing Expenditures from and within the General Fund 
of the Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue Adopted Budget”.  

  
(Note: Copies of the supplemental budget being considered at the Board meeting are 
available at the office of the Fire District Board and may be accessed on the Fire District’s 
website at www.mcfr.org).  
 

13. Good of the Order 
 

a. Board members will attend their annual Christmas Dinner upon conclusion of the 
meeting. The public may attend at their own expense.   

 
14. Adjournment  
 
 
 

 
 

OUR MOTTO: 
 

Educate, Serve & Protect 
 

OUR SHARED VISION: 
 

“To provide for the optimal safety and welfare of the community and our members.” 
 

OUR MISSION: 

“We are committed to providing professional emergency and non-emergency services to minimize suffering, protect life, 
environment and property.” 

 
OUR VALUES: 

 
  P-rofessionalism  
  R-espect 
  I-ntegrity  
  D-uty  
  E-ngaged 

 
 

2

http://www.mcfr.org/


 
 

MINUTES 
Mid- Columbia Fire and Rescue 

Board of Directors Meeting 
In Person / Virtually Held 

1400 W 8th Street, The Dalles, OR 97058 
November 21, 2022 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

President  Jacobs called the Mid-Columbia  Fire and Rescue meeting  to order at 5:30 p.m. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Jacobs led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. ROLL CALL 

Directors present:  David Jacobs, Dick Schaffeld, Diana Bailey, Corey Case. Dave Peters arrived at 
5:36 p.m.  

Staff present: Chief Bob Palmer,  Division Chief Fred Coleman, Office Manager Stephanie Ziegler, and 
Assistant Chief David Jensen attended via video conference. 

Others Present: Legal Counsel Andrew Myers and private citizen Walter Denstedt.  

4. AGENDA CHANGES 

President Jacobs asked if there were any agenda changes. Chief Palmer stated that he added 
correspondence from Wasco County regarding the ASA and he added balance sheets. 

5. MINUTES 

Minutes of the October 17, 2022, meeting stand approved as written. 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

7. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
a. Balance Sheets/Combined Cash Accounts as of 10/30/2022 – There were no comments on 

the balance sheets or Cash Accounts. 
b. Ambulance Service Financial Report – No comments. 

 
 

3



 
 

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Urban Renewal Report – Director Bailey reported that there had been an Urban Renewal 

meeting, however, it was an executive session. Therefore, she could not report on anything 
associated with this. 

b. Enterprise Zone Report – President Jacobs stated there was nothing new to report. He did 
say that Google was moving forward with the build. 
 

9. FIRE CHIEFS REPORT 
a. Fire Chiefs Report - Included in board packet. Chief Palmer read through his report, giving a 

brief update on each item.   
b. Monthly  Report – AC Jensen, included in board packet. 
c. Monthly Report – DC Coleman, included in board packet. 
d. Monthly Report – DC Wood, included in board packet. 

 
10. CORRESPONDENCE 

Chief Palmer included the letter from Wasco County regarding the ASA. 

11. OLD BUSINESS 

There was no old business to report. 

12. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
a. Adjourn to Executive Session in accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(d) to conduct deliberations 

with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations. Adjourned at 
5:51 p.m. 
Adjourned from Executive Session at 6:28 p.m. Rejoined regular session at 6:30 p.m. 
 

13. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Information Sheet – Consideration by MCFR Board to ratify the tentatively agreed upon 

Local 1308 Collective Bargaining Agreement.  President Jacobs stated that it was a good 
mediation and he thought it was a fair contract, benefiting both the employees and the 
district. Director Bailey appreciated working with the union. Director Bailey stated she 
thought they could move forward positively.  President Jacobs stated he would consider a 
motion. Director Case asked how the motion should be stated because this is a tentative 
agreement not a final agreement.  Director Case made a motion to ratify the Local 1308 
union contract as tentatively agreed upon. Director Schaffeld seconded. 5 Ayes, 0 Nays. 
Motion carried. 
 

4



 
 

b. Resolution No. 2022-08 – Resolution Adopting Revisions to the MCFR Employee Handbook. 
To update the MCFR Employee handbook with changes that were tentatively agreed upon in 
the union contract. Director Bailey stated that she had done the math on the spreadsheet 
that had been included in the board packet for the wages and the she came up with 
different numbers. President Jacobs explained how the math was done. Discussion followed.  
 
Chief Jensen also explained how the adjustments were made. The spreadsheet included in 
the board packet was the incorrect spreadsheet. Chief Jensen corrected the spreadsheet on 
the wages.  No other comments. 
 
Director Peters made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2022-08, the adoption of the 
revisions to the employee handbook through attachment C with amendments. Director 
Bailey seconded. All in favor: 5 Ayes, 0 Nays. Motion carried with changes. 
 

14. GOOD OF THE ORDER 

There was nothing for Good of the Order. 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

President Jacobs adjourned the meeting at 6:53 p.m. 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



Mid-Columbia Fire & Rescue

ANNUAL COLLECTION STATISTICS

12/13/2022

Date Of Service 12/01/2021

Date Of Service 11/30/2022

Invoices 0

Company Mid-Columbia Fire & Rescue

Month Charges Pending
%

Tickets Payments % Disallowed % Uncollected %FireMed %

Dec 21 340,726.13 5,631.21 2 % 185 -126,199.59 37 % -192,585.40 57 % -14,762.97 4 %-1,546.96 0 %

Jan 22 384,409.19 9,198.14 2 % 212 -123,551.93 32 % -236,818.99 62 % -10,373.32 3 %-4,466.81 1 %

Feb 22 325,274.99 21,148.03 7 % 175 -111,080.78 34 % -172,493.15 53 % -17,746.36 5 %-2,806.67 1 %

Mar 22 326,499.44 14,387.58 4 % 176 -122,733.81 38 % -171,996.84 53 % -15,070.58 5 %-2,310.63 1 %

Apr 22 361,564.03 30,693.91 8 % 196 -119,322.09 33 % -204,168.52 56 % -4,908.38 1 %-2,471.13 1 %

May 22 340,103.13 29,961.11 9 % 184 -120,479.73 35 % -188,193.15 55 % -169.14 0 %-1,300.00 0 %

Jun 22 355,134.78 49,422.13 14 % 192 -124,932.03 35 % -180,199.72 51 % -81.36 0 %-499.54 0 %

Jul 22 387,064.86 50,941.42 13 % 204 -131,172.72 34 % -202,616.65 52 % -746.88 0 %-1,587.19 0 %

Aug 22 422,713.93 70,614.15 17 % 240 -122,268.51 29 % -226,623.41 54 % -1.20 0 %-3,206.66 1 %

Sep 22 402,719.33 102,399.01 25 % 217 -101,716.23 25 % -197,446.25 49 % 0.00 0 %-1,157.84 0 %

Oct 22 342,180.61 86,803.79 25 % 185 -78,633.08 23 % -176,443.74 52 % 0.00 0 %-300.00 0 %

Nov 22 364,466.59 321,779.69 88 % 199 -9,781.98 3 % -32,904.92 9 % 0.00 0 %0.00 0 %

4,352,857.01 792,980.17

All amounts shown relate directly to each month's charges.   They will not reconcile to monthly deposit reports

2,365 -1,291,872.48 -21,653.43 -2,182,490.74 -63,860.19 792,980.17

26



MCFR INFORMATION SHEET 
 

DATE: December  19, 2022  

TO: Fire District Board of Directors  

FROM: Bob Palmer, Fire Chief  

ISSUE: Fire Chief’s Report  

ASA UPDATE PROCESS: The current ASA #2 contract has been extended by addendum 
through December 31, 2023, in order to allow adequate time for the adoption of the updated and 
amended Wasco County Ambulance Service Area Plan and the Ordinance regulating 
ambulance service in Wasco County. I will keep the Board updated as this process moves 
forward.    

STUDENT INTERN PROGRAM: Now that the student intern program is in full swing, Staff will 
be focusing our attention on the apprenticeship program. Staff will be evaluating how the 
student intern program may dovetail in with the apprenticeship program and how both may 
complement each other.    

APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM: After meeting with Karl Koenig with the Oregon State 
Firefighters Council to learn more about the Oregon State Apprenticeship Program, we have 
found that it is an opportunity that falls directly in line with our Fire District Vision and Strategic 
Plan. As  noted at our November Board meeting, the OSFM approached the District asking if  
MCFR would be interested accepting funding (1.5 million dollars) on their behalf to establish a 
two-year FF apprenticeship program. The aforementioned revenue would fully fund 6-7 
firefighters for two years. Upon conclusion of training, the apprentices would receive their FF 
journeyman card. The goal of the program is to recruit local members of the public with little to 
no experience, train them to the level of FF I and EMT Basic, to create a bigger pool of trained 
firefighters for the job market. MCFR will benefit from the additional staffing capacity during the 
two-year apprenticeship period and provide the potential to directly hire trained/experienced 
firefighters if a vacancy should exist, either during or upon the conclusion of this two-year 
program. A letter addressed to the apprenticeship coordinator, has been drafted to express our 
interest in establishing this program within Wasco County. Once approved, the next steps will 
be to establish an IGA with the OSFM and coordinate with CGCC to establish educational 
opportunities relative to college courses associated with the apprenticeship program. Staff will 
keep the Board updated on our progress as we move forward with this exciting opportunity.  

GROUND EMERGENCY TRANSPORT (GEMT) FFS PROGRAM: Applications for the WA and 
OR FY 2021-22 GEMT reimbursement process have been completed, signed, and submitted to 
OHA. GEMT reimbursement funds have also been received through the reconciliation process 
for the previous fiscal year.   

OREGON GEMT CCO PROGRAM: The OHA continues to move forward with the application 
process for the next FY reimbursement period. OHA documents have been signed to receive 
reimbursement from the CCO’s back to January 1, 2022, so we should start receiving these 
funds shortly.   

27



COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT: As far as we know, the construction on the 
GOR project is moving forward. We will keep the Board apprised ss more information is 
received.  

COVID-19 PANDEMIC RESPONSE: COVID is still out there in all of its various strains. It is 
highly recommended that you get vaccinated and boosted. RSV is on the rise as well. Effective 
November 14, 2022, Governor Brown declared a Public Health Emergency related to the spread 
of the RSV virus. The period of emergency is currently scheduled to remain in effect until March 
6, 2023. Finally, influenza is spreading in the community as well, so it is advised to get your flu 
vaccination.  

STRATEGIC PLAN STATUS: A status report will be provided at the January 2023 Board 
meeting.  

STACKER BUTTE LEASE: Staff is in the process of drafting the final amendment to the 
Stacker Butte lease for review by legal counsel. Once this process is complete, we will move 
forward with addressing amendments to the Stacker Butte subleases. 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING PROCESS: The CBA is signed and in place. The policies will 
follow shortly.  

OREGON FIRE SERVICE CAPACITY PROGRAM: We have submitted request for two 
firefighters through this grant and are awaiting a response. The Oregon Fire Service Capacity 
Program is geared towards small to medium agencies were an increase of regular local 
firefighters and fire prevention staff is needed. This grant opportunity is competitive and is 
available to Oregon’s local fire districts and departments.  

RECRUIT FF ACADEMY: The next recruit FF academy is scheduled for January 23, 2022.  

FF RECRUITMENT: The FF recruitment process is complete. We will initially hire 3 FF’s from 
the current list and if the OSFM grant is approved an additional two FF’s will be brought on 
board.  

911 STATISTICS:  

911 STATISTICS 
OCTOBER 2022 YEAR-TO-DATE  

AGENCY CALLS PERCENT CALLS PERCENT 
MCFR  349 12% 3786 12% 
TDPD    1450 64% 18771 62% 
WCSO    729 25% 7872 26% 
TOTAL  2528 100% 30429 100% 

 

RECOMMENDATION/ACTION: Staff update. 

 

28



Assistant Fire Chief- Board Report 
David Jensen, Assistant Fire Chief 

November 2022 

 Major Topics for November 2022 

• Staffing 
 
Dual Role-  

The District conducted a hiring and recruitment process which resulted in 
14 applications to the position of Firefighter/EMT. One applicant also applied as a 
Firefighter/Paramedic. 13 were found qualified to test and 11 attended the 
assessment center on December 2nd. Seven of the applicants passed the 
examinations and made it on the Firefighter/EMT register. The only 
Firefighter/Paramedic who tested did not pass the written examination. 

The District is currently filling three new Firefighter/EMT positions and 
potentially two-three additional Firefighter/EMT or Paramedic positions. These 
positions are primarily funded through an Oregon State Fire Marshal Grant with 
the intention of maintaining these positions after the three-year grant. We are 
additionally looking to fill a Lieutenant position and establish a register (list) soon.    
 
Single Role- 

We currently have two paramedic single-role positions unfilled. These 
positions are open with continuous recruitment.  
 

• Equipment Purchasing 
o Type 3 Purchasing Process  

The Final inspection for our two new Type Three apparatus is scheduled for 
December 19th and 20th. The current Type Three we use will be turned back 
to the Federal System to make room for the new units.  

o Command Vehicles 

The budgeted command staff vehicles have been ordered but they will not 
arrive on the same date. The ordering process only allows for one unit initially. 
After a second opening becomes available from the dealer the second vehicle 
will be processed. We don’t expect to see these vehicles until at least March. 
When those arrive, we plan to surplus two old units as proposed in the budget 
process.  

• Computer Aided Dispatching RFP (Still in progress) 
The District is in partnership with Wasco County and the City of The Dalles to 
develop a Request for Proposal (RFP) to replace the Computer-Aided 
Dispatching system (CAD). Wasco County has begun to use a grant writing 
consultant to see if we can help offset the costs. It is currently estimated by 
Wasco County Finance that we will be able to pay for the majority of this project 
though reserve funds at County 911, which we help pay through fees. It would be 

29



good to keep those reserve funds and use grant funding, but we are moving 
forward regardless of the grant outcome as it is an essential service. One full day 
work session and new weekly appointments have been scheduled until 
completion of the RFP.  

 

• Other ongoing projects/engagements: 
o Continuity of Operations Plan 
o Recruitment and hiring of Firefighters and EMS personnel 
o Apprenticeship planning and meetings 
o Labor Contract negotiations and costing 
o 911 User group meetings on Fiscal Year 2023-24 planning 
o Radio feasibility project with Sheriff’s Office and Emergency Management 
o Planning and Preparing for ELFF (Event Cancelled)  
o Filing OSFM wildland supplemental staffing end of grant report 

 Coordinating grant amendment to use unspent funds next fiscal year 
o Teaching the Fire Officer 1 academy (1 Week).  
o Participate in the Hood River MCI Drill as an evaluator  
o Coordinating and interviewing captains on potential personnel assignments and 

personnel movement between shifts. 
o Reviewing response metrics to ensure forward progression 
o Reviewing evaluations on probationary firefighters and coaching probationary 

officers. 
o Review, edit and approve GEMT submission to OHA and WHA 
o Working with Local 1308 on updating our Lieutenant and Captain Selection 

Criteria  
o 3 training sessions with James Rowan (our organizational leadership coach) 
o Review evaluations for probationary employees  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



• Response Metrics 

EMS Calls for Service November 2022 
Percentage of EMS Calls Meeting 60 Second Response Compliance: 

A Shift- 57.1%, B Shift- 69.4%, C Shift- 44.4% Station 1 overall- 57.9%, Station 2 overall- 50% 

Districtwide 56% compliance 

Average Turnout Time 1:33   90 Percentile Response Time Compliance: 2:04 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



Fire and Other Calls for Service November 2022 
Percentage of Fire/Other Calls Meeting 80 Second Response Compliance: 

A Shift- 68.4%, B Shift- 58.3%, C Shift- 53.8% 

Station 1 overall- 63.6%, Station 2 overall-52% 

Districtwide 59.4% 

Average Turnout Time 1:14   90 Percentile Response Time Compliance: 2:45 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



District Response Metrics 
Below are the current statistics year-over-year, January 1st through November 30th     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Call Types Jan-Nov 2018-22 
 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
EMS/Rescue 2104 2135 2093 2456 2687 
Fire 97 69 77 112 102 
Overpressure/Explosion 3 1 1 4 1 
Haz Condition 22 26 15 20 11 
Service Call 223 230 208 313 328 
Good Intent 225 182 241 239 449 
False Alarm 71 58 67 68 59 
Special 8 4 1 4 0 

2753 2706 2705

3216

3637

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total Call Volume
Year-To-Date Annual 2018-22

Total Call Volume

33



Call Distribution by Apparatus for November 2022 

97

3 22

22
3

22
5

71

8

69

1 26

23
0

18
2

58

4

77

1 15

20
8 24

1

67

1

11
2

4 20

31
3

23
9

68

4

10
2

1 11

32
8

44
9

59

0

NON-MEDICAL CALL TYPES YTD NOV  22
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

125

108

128

74

E21/M24

E22/M22

M21

M23

0 50 100 150 200

CALLS FOR SERVICE BY APPARATUS FOR 
NOVEMBER 2022

34



Prevention Division- Board Report 
Jay Wood, Division Chief 

November 2022 

Part two of three of the Information Technology upgrades were completed in November with the 
delivery of a new central multi-function copier/fax/scanner at Station 1 along with four other 
smaller printers and multi-function machines for Stephanie’s desk/burn permits, Chief Palmer, 
breathing apparatus testing and finally Station 2 for copier/fax/scanner. This gives us a redundant 
system should the central machine be out of service; we can place another machine into service 
for the time the central machine is down. The final project is to replace the phone system and 
phones. We are shooting for January to start this project and the training necessary for the end-
users of the phone system, mainly the Chief Officers and Stephanie.  

The district had zero hostile fire events (with monetary loss) for November 2022. We did respond 
to two mutual aid fires, one with Mosier Fire and one with Dallesport Fire.  

Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue hosted a class for Fire Officer 1. I, along with Assistant Chief 
Jensen, Division Chief Coleman and our volunteer instructor Marc Crain taught this weeklong 
course to several students from the Gorge area. This class prepares the students from Mid-
Columbia Fire and Rescue as well as the other areas, in becoming the first line supervisor for 
Engine and Truck Companies. One student was a former volunteer with MCFR who is now the 
Fire Chief at High Prairie Fire in Klickitat County. Other students included two from Hood River 
Fire and three others from local volunteer fire departments.  

I assisted DC Coleman with instruction of the Firefighter 2 class for the Columbia Gorge Training 
Association. DC Coleman taught three sections and I taught three sections. Again, this class was 
attended by several students from the Gorge area.  

I attended the Oregon Fire Marshal Association Technical Education Conference in Salem. This 
two-day conference hit the highlights of changes to the Oregon Fire Code for 2022 as well as a 
full day of commercial kitchen hood inspections and cleaning by third-party contractors. The trip 
to Salem was worthwhile.  

AC Jensen and I met with our account manager for ESO, our upcoming Records Management 
program. During the meeting, we learned that Oregon EMS has given agencies such as MCFR 
another six months to make the transition due to various factors. This gives us a little more time 
to find out how ESO will be integrated with our records, EMS and fire reporting systems.  

All four chief officers attended a Mass Casualty Incident Exercise in Hood River as evaluators. 
There are going to be a series of exercises of the MCI plan in the Gorge over the coming months. 
The one for Wasco County will be in January 2023.  

35



The Mid-Columbia Fire Prevention Co-Op had an in-person meeting in November. There are 
several upcoming events in the region (the Gorge area) that the Co-Op will be attending, mostly 
centered around the holidays.   

Along with Veterans Day, I took the week of Thanksgiving off as vacation.  

Community Risk Reduction [Prevention, Public Education, Code Enforcement] 
• Site Visits/Code Questions – No projects or code questions for November.

• Site Team – Due to lack of business, there were no meetings in November. This is not

unusual for November.

Meetings/Training/Safety/Other: 
• Various Staff Meetings and Weekly Planning Meetings

• Coaching and Strategy Sessions with James Rowan

• Fire Officer 1 Instruction - 5 days

• Firefighter 2 Instruction – 3 evenings

• OFMA Tec Conference – 2 days

• MCFPC Meeting

Emergency Responses/Station Staffing/Fire Investigations: 

• All Calls – 1 on my duty shifts, 5 for the district.

• Motor Vehicle Accident – 0

• Fire Response – 1

• Duty Officer – 6 days

36



 Training Division- Board Report 
Fred Coleman, Division Chief 

November 2022 

Recruiting: 

Volunteer Training: 

• Masking Porch drills 
• Ladders 
• Forcible Entry 

Career Training: 

• SCBA masking drills 
• 1st due company task performances 
• 2nd due company task performances 
• Psychiatric 
• Neurological/Seizures 
• Immunological 
• Endocrine/ Diabetes  

Major projects and completion status: 

• Probationary training and testing for Recruit classes,2021-03E- Complete 

• Probationary training and testing for Recruit classes, 2021-04E and 

 2022-01E, 2022-01, and 2022-02 

• Career officer development course-in progress, ½ complete 

• Working on training for dispatchers- on going 

• Planning for Volunteer FF II Academy with CGTA- Complete 

• Planning for Volunteer FF I Academy with CGTA- ¾ Complete 

• Planning for winter wildland Academy with CGTA- ½ Complete 

• Planning for S-131- ¾ Complete 

• Planning for S-230 - ¾ Complete 

• Planning for S-231 – ¾ Complete 

• Planning for S-290 - ¾  Complete 

• Planning for S-219-1/4 Complete 

• Planning for Fire Officer I course- Complete 

• Planning for May 2023 MCFR Fire School- ¾  complete 

• Planning for S-330- ¼ Complete 

37



• Planning for Dual Role Academy 2023-01- ½ complete 

• Planning for MCI Drill- ¾ complete 

 

• Meetings/ Training/ District Representation 

 
• Officer Meeting Nov 7th 0830 

 
• Hood River MCI tabletop Nov 9th 0800-1300 

 
• Staff Meeting Nov 10th, 1500 

 
• Officer Development Nov 10th, 1530  

 
• Taught Fire Officer I Nov 14-18 0800-1700 

 
• Quality Assurance Meeting Nov 14th 0830 

 
• CGTA Meeting Nov 16th 1000-1200 

 
• Board Meeting Nov 21st, 1730 

 
• Lucas Training from Stryker ,0830 

 
• Starlight Parade Nov 25th , 1700 

 

 

Emergency Response and Station Staffing 

• All Calls-1    

• Rescue Response- 0 

• EMS Response -0 

• MVA Response - 0 

• Fire Response – 0 

Duty Chief for 10 days this month  

 

 

 

 

 

38



Current Volunteer Levels and Status: 

                                    November 2022 Volunteers 
Position/ 
Qualification 

Number Volunteers 

Lieutenant/FF2/WFFT2 1 Eric Pyles 
FF1/WFFT2  2 Loren Gilbert, Chuck Laochumnanvanit  
FF1/WFFT2/EMT  1 Tristan Sheppard  
   
FF1/WFFT2/Paramedic 1 Dave Bandel 
FF1/WFF2/EMT 
FF1/WFFT2/  
FF1/WFFT2/EMR/ 
Academy 
Academy / EMT 
Academy / EMT 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

Tanner Fletcher Student 2nd year 
Nicole Clark       Student 
Devin Soles       Student 
Kellan Duffy       Student 
Michael Hickey  Recruit 
Austin Morris     Recruit 

     
Apparatus Operator 2 Jesse Witkowski 
   
Support 1 Christina Buck (Medical Leave) 
Chaplain 2 Marilyn Roth, Paul Boehlke 
Total Volunteers 16  

 

October Volunteer Hours 

Training Hours= 80 

Response Ready Hours=96 Shift Volunteers hours and 984 Students hours 

Total Hours= 1160 total volunteer hours 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39



Training Totals  

In total Since July 2020, we have completed the following training at MCFR: 

 

5 Career Dual Role Academies  

4 Career Single Role EMS Orientations  

2 Volunteer Structure Academies with CGTA 

2 Wildland Academy With CGTA  

1 S-290 Intermediate Wildland Fire Behavior with CGTA 7 students 

1 S-230/S-231 Crew/Engine Boss 19 Students 

1 S-215 Wildland Urban Interface FF 27 students including 12 remotely taught in Wamic 

2 S-131 Wildland Firefighter type I 

1 FI 210 Wildland investigation class 

55 Students for Nozzle Forward Class  

1 Fire Officer I class 8 students 

1 Structure Firefighter II Academy 5 students 

 

And we have certified the following:  

6 Vol FF I Structure 

4 Vol FF II Structure 

2 Career FF II Structure 

47 Career/Vol Wildland FF II 

31 Career/Vol Wildland FF I 

2 Engine Boss 

9 Career Apparatus Operator Eng., Water Tender, Wildland Type’s III, VI 

11 Aerial Operators  

18 NFPA Ropes I & II  

Bold = Additions for the reporting month. 

 

40



MCFR INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
DATE: December 19, 2022 
 
TO: Fire District Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Bob Palmer, Fire Chief 
 
SYNOPSIS: Supplemental Budget  
 
ISSUE: Resolution No. 2022-09 Adopting a Supplemental Budget for FY 2022-23, 
Making Appropriations and Authorizing Expenditures from and within various funds of 
the Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue Adopted Budget. 
 
BACKGROUND: Oregon Budget Law recognizes that after the beginning of the fiscal 
year, changes in appropriations in the budget sometimes become necessary, and so 
allows for those changes via supplemental budgets and budget amendments. 
Supplemental budgets add funds to existing budgets, while budget amendments move 
already budgeted funds between categories of the same fund without adding to the 
fund’s total budget. 
 
A Public Hearing is required for any supplemental budget that changes a fund by more 
than 10%. The proposed supplemental budget is less than 10% of the operating budget 
of the affected fund, so a Public Hearing is not required. 
 
A notice of the Supplemental Budget is required to be published, and that notice is 
scheduled to be printed in Columbia Community Connections on Tuesday, December 
2022. 
 
Resolution No. 2022-09 addresses a Supplemental Budget for the General Fund and 
Buidling Reserve Fund. 
 
The Fire District’s General Fund has realized an additional $350,634.00 in the General 
Fund revenue. A portion of these funds are proposed to be allocated for expenditure 
within the account lines listed below:  

1. The FY 2022-23 General Fund Revenue will increase by $350,634.00, increasing 
total General Fund resources to $8,654,746.00. Reason: Unanticipated tax 
revenue realized.  

 
2. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6401-00 Fire Chief will 

increase by $7799.00 to $146,841.00. Purpose: Additional costs associated with  
COLA and benefits.  

 
3. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6402-00 Assistant Chief will 

increase by $8,609.00 to $140,324.00.00. Purpose: Additional costs associated 
with  COLA and benefits.  

41



 
4. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6402-03 Division Chief will 

increase by $42,076.00 to $42,076.00. Purpose: Wages and benefits for new 
Division Chief position to accommodate succession planning and further evaluate 
the continued need for this position. 
 

5. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6402-04 Division Chief will  
increase by $7,095.00 to $135,649.00. Purpose: Additional cost associated with 
increase in admin. COLA.  
 

6. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6402-05 Division Chief will 
increase by $7,095.00 to $135,649.00. Purpose: Additional cost associated with 
increase in admin. COLA.  
 

7. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6421-02 Retirement – 
Admin. will increase by $13,970.00 to $137,972.00. Purpose: Additional cost 
associated with increase in admin. COLA and new Division Chief position.  
 

8. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6421-03 PEHP - Admin. will 
increase by $1,356.00 to $13,166.00. Purpose: Additional cost associated with 
increase in admin. COLA and new Division Chief position.  
 

9. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6423-01 Life Insurance – 
Admin. will increase by $200.00 to $1,700.00. Purpose: Additional costs 
associated with new Division Chief position.  
 

10. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6424-04 Health Insurance – 
Admin. will increase by $8,800.00 to $131,900.00. Purpose: Additional costs 
associated with new Division Chief position.  

 
11. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6424-04 Occupational 

Health – Admin. will increase by $900.00 to $6,400.00. Purpose: Additional costs 
associated with new Division Chief position.  
 

12. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6430-02 Medicare – Admin. 
will increase by $1,017.00 to $9,942.00. Additional cost associated with increase 
in admin. COLA and new Division Chief position.  
 

13. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6430-03 Defined 
Contribution – Admin. will increase by $3,023.00 to $32, 204.00. Additional cost 
associated with increase in admin. COLA and new Division Chief position.  
 

42



14. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6403-02 Captain - Public 
Safety will increase by $15,420.00 to $310,000.00. Purpose: Additional cost 
associated with increase in public safety COLA.  
 

15. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6416-02 Ambulance 
Overtime – Public Safety will decrease by $26,300.00 to $94,828.00. Purpose: 
Reduce Ambulance Overtime as a result of upstaffing which has reduced 
overtime costs within this line. A portion of these funds are being transferred to 
the Other Overtime line.  
 

16. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6416-05 Training Overtime 
– Public Safety will increase by $10,000.00 to $58,510.00. Purpose: Increase 
Training Overtime to appropriately fund third and fourth training academy costs.  
 

17. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6416-06 Other Overtime – 
Public Safety will increase by $20,000.00 to $76,000.00. Purpose: Increase 
Other Overtime to provide necessary funds to upstaff as authorized by the Duty 
Officer to maintain response capacity.   
 

18. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6531-00 Social Security - 
Public Safety will increase by $2,600.00 to $5,100.00. Purpose: Additional funds 
to accommodate the costs associated with the Single-Role Wildland FF program.  
 

19. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6485-01 Firefighting 
Supplies - PPE will increase by $1,750.00 to $12,950.00. Purpose: Additional 
funds to accommodate the costs associated with the Single-Role Wildland FF 
program.  
 

20. The FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6532-02 GF Transfers Out 
will increase by $220,000.00 to $749,560.00. Purpose: Transfer additional funds 
into Building Reserve fund for future third fire station.  
 

21. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6533-01 Capital Outlay 
- Office will increase by $2,000.00 to $35,425.00. Purpose: Funds for purchase of 
new computer for new Division Chief position.  
 

22. The FY 2022-23 General Fund Requirement will increase by $350,634.00 to 
$8,654,746.00 increasing the ending fund balance by $3,224.00 to 
$1,253.254.00. Purpose: Unanticipated funds will be used to increase the GF 
Requirements in the lines noted above and the difference of funds not 
appropriated for expenditure will be incorporated into the FY 2022-23 ending 
fund balance.    

Generally speaking, the allocations noted above will be used for the following purposes: 
(1) Provide additional funds for a new Division Chief position and associated equipment 

43



for succession planning purposes; (2) Provide necessary funds for a new Single Role 
Wildland FF program; (3) Increase the Training OT line to accommodate additional 
recruit academy training; (4) Increase the Other OT line to accommodate upstaffing to 
maintain shift response capacity; (5) Provide added funds to accommodate admin. and 
public safety COLA and benefit increases; (6) Increase the Reserve Fund transfer 
amount; and (7) Increase Building Reserve Capital Outlay funds for construction of a 
third future fire station.  
 
BUDGET IMPLICATION: Upon adoption of the proposed supplemental budget, 
adjustments within the various fund categories will be implemented based upon 
Resolution No. 2022-09.  
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION AND ALTERNATIVES:  
 

1. Move to Adopt Resolution No. 2022-09 Adopting a Supplemental Budget for FY 
2022-23, Making Appropriations, and Authorizing Expenditures from and within 
the General Fund and Building Reserve Fund of the Mid-Columbia Fire and 
Rescue Adopted Budget. Staff Recommendation. 

 
2. The Board may choose to decline to make any changes to the adopted budget at 

this time. 

44



Resolution No. 2022-09 
December 19, 2022 

 
 

 

Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue 
Resolution No. 2022-09 

 
 

A Resolution Adopting a Supplemental Budget for FY 2022-23, Making 
Appropriations, and Authorizing Expenditures from and within the General 

Fund and Building Reserve Fund of the Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue 
Adopted Budget 

 
 
WHEREAS, the FY 2022-23 Budget of Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue 

(hereinafter referred to as “District) adopted by the District incorporates operational 
funding for the current fiscal year; and  
 

 
WHEREAS, the District’s General Fund has realized an additional $350,634.00 

in unanticipated revenue, with $347,410.00 to be allocated to provide funds for the 
following items: 1) Additional revenue to support a new Division Chief position; 2) 
Additional overtime revenue to support recruit academy training and shift upstaffing; 3) 
Increased revenue for public safety social security and firefighting supplies PPE to 
support the single-role wildland program; and 4) Added revenue to increase the transfer 
amount from the General Fund to the Building Reserve fund.  
 

 
WHEREAS, the availability of these funds was not reasonably foreseen upon 

preparing the original budget; and  
 
 
WHEREAS, appropriations were not made in the FY 2022-23 Budget of the 

District for expenditures that will be needed for the current fiscal year; and  
 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Mid-Columbia Fire and Rescue find it 

reasonable and prudent to adopt this supplemental budget.  

45



Resolution No. 2022-09 
December 19, 2022 

 
 

 

 
 

 

46



Resolution No. 2022-09 
December 19, 2022 

 
 

 

 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mid-Columbia Board of Directors as 
follows:  

 
Section 1. The district hereby adopts the Supplemental Budget for FY 2022-23, 
increasing revenues and making appropriations in the General Fund as follows: 

1. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund Revenue is increased by the amount of 
$350,634.00, increasing total General Fund resources to $8,654,746.00.  

 
2. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6401-00 Fire Chief is 

hereby increased by $7799.00 to $146,841.00. 
 

3. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6402-00 Assistant Chief 
is hereby increased by $8,609.00 to $140,324.00.00. 
 

4. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6402-03 Division Chief 
is hereby increased by $42,076.00 to $42,076.00. 
 

5. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6402-04 Division Chief 
is hereby increased by $7,095.00 to $135,649.00. 
 

47



Resolution No. 2022-09 
December 19, 2022 

 
 

 

6. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6402-05 Division Chief 
is hereby increased by $7,095.00 to $135,649.00. 
 

7. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6421-02 Retirement – 
Admin. is hereby increased by $13,970.00 to $137,972.00. 
 

8. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6421-03 PEHP - Admin. 
is hereby increased by $1,356.00 to $13,166.00. 
 

9. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6423-01Life Insurance 
– Admin. is hereby increased by $200.00 to $1,700.00. 
 

10. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6424-04 Health 
Insurance – Admin. is hereby increased by $8,800.00 to $131,900.00. 

 
11. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6424-04 Occupational 

Health – Admin. is hereby increased by $900.00 to $6,400.00.  
 

12. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6430-02 Medicare – 
Admin. is hereby increased by $1,017.00 to $9,942.00.  
 

13. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6430-03 Defined 
Contribution – Admin. is hereby increased by $3,023.00 to $32, 204.00. 
 

14. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6403-02 Captain - 
Public Safety is hereby increased by $15,420.00 to $310,000.00. 
 

15. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6416-02 Ambulance 
Overtime – Public Safety is hereby decreased by $26,300.00 to $94,828.00. 
 

16. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6416-05 Training 
Overtime – Public Safety is hereby increased by $10,000.00 to $58,510.00. 
 

17. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6416-06 Other 
Overtime – Public Safety is hereby increased by $20,000.00 to $76,000.00. 
 

18. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6531-00 Social Security 
- Public Safety is hereby increased by $2,600.00 to $5,100.00. 
 

19. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6485-01 Firefighting 
Supplies - PPE is hereby increased by $1,750.00 to $12,950.00. 
 

48



Resolution No. 2022-09 
December 19, 2022 

 
 

 

20. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6532-02 GF Transfers 
Out is hereby increased by $220,000.00 to $749,560.00. 
 

21. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 6533-01 Capital Outlay 
- Office is hereby increased by $2,000.00 to $35,425.00. 
 

22. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund Requirement is increased by $350,634.00 to 
$8,654,746.00 increasing the ending fund balance by $3,224.00 to 
$1,253.254.00.    
 

Section 2. The district hereby adopts the Supplemental Budget for FY 2022-23, 
increasing revenues in the Building Reserve Fund as follows: 

1. That the FY 2022-23 General Fund appropriation for line 4877-00 Building 
Reserve Fund – Transfer from GF is hereby increased by $220,000.00 to 
$262,500.00. 

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption by the Mid-Columbia 
Fire and Rescue Board of Directors and shall remain in effect until receipt and 
acceptance of the FY 2022-23 audit report. 
 
Approved and adopted this 19th day of December 2023, by the Board of Directors of Mid-
Columbia Fire and Rescue. 
 
 
Ayes:   ___________ 
 
Nayes: ___________ 
       
            
      President/Board of Directors 
 
 
Attest: __________________________________      
            Secretary/Board of Directors 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ___________________________________ 
                                    Attorney of Record 

49


	1_121922_Agenda
	2_112122_Board Minutes
	3_121922_Financial Report Document_Board
	4_ACS_120121 to 113022
	5_121922_FC Monthly Report
	6_Nov 2022- All
	7_121922_Info Sheet_Supplemental Budget
	8_121922_Resolution No. 2022-09_Adopting Supplemental Budget and Appropriations



